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UNITED STAPES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN. :Di4~TRICT OF NEW YORK

-x

RENE SANTRAYLL and MICHAEL WALKER, :
p/k/a THE LEGEND, and ERIC COLODNE

.d/b/a BARA JOY MUSIC COMPANY,        :

Plaintiffs,
:

- against -
:

KIRK BURRELL p/k/a M.C. HAMMER, :

BUST IT PUBLISHING, BUSTIN’
"MANAGEMENT, INC., a/k/a BUST IT :
MANAGEMENT/PRODUCTIONS, CAPITOL
RECORDS, INC., PEPSICO INC. and :

JACK SCHWARTZ SHOES, INC. d/b/a
BRITISH KNIGHTS, :

Defendants. :
-x

91 Civ.

COMPLAINT

Plaintiffs, by their attorneys, Cowan, Liebowitz

Latman, P.C., for their complaint against defendants, allege

i. This is a civil action for: (i) copyright ’

under the copyright law of the United S~es,~.infringement arising

the Act of November 19, 1976, 17 U.SoC. § i01 et sec~ (the "~opy-

right Act"); (ii) use of false designations of origin and. fal_-S~e

descriptions and representations in commerce arising under t~i

U.S. Trademark Act of 1946, as amended (the "Lanham Act"), 15

U.S.C. § i125(a) ; and (iii) related claims of unfair competition,

false advertising, and deceptive acts and practices under the

common law and the statutory law of New York.



2.    Jurisdiction is based on the provisions of 15

U.S.C. § 1121, 28 U.S.C. §§ 1338(a) and (b) and the Court’s pen-

dant jurisdiction.

3.    Plaintiff Rene Santrayll ("Santrayll") is an indi-

vidual who resides in the Bronx, New York.

4.    Plaintiff Michael Walker ("Walker") is an indivi-

dual who resides in the Bronx, New York.

5.    In their capacity as a musical group professionally

known as "The Legend," Santrayll and Walker (hereinafter sometimes

referred to collectively as the "Legend plaintiffs"), write,

perform and record musical compositions of a genre commonly known

as "rap."

6.    Plaintiff Eric Colodne is an individual doing

business as Bara Joy Music Company ("Colodne"), and maintains an

office at 161 West 54th Street, New York, New York.

7.    Upon information and belief, defendant Kirk Burrell

p/k/a M.C. Hammer ("Burrell") is a performing artist known for his

performances and recordings of musical compositions of the genre

commonly known as "rap."

8.    Upon information and belief, defendants Bust It

Publishing and Bustin’ Management Inc. a/k/a Bust It Produc-

tions/Management (hereinafter sometimes referred to collectively

as the "Bust It Defendants") are, respectively, a music publishing

company and record production company, owned and controlled by

Burrell.

9.

Records, Inc.

Upon information and belief, defendant Capitol

("Capitol"), a corporation organized under the laws
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of the state of Delaware, maintains offices in the city, state and

Southern District of New York, and elsewhere.

i0. Upon information and belief, defendant Pepsico Inc.

("Pepsico") is a corporation organized under the laws of the state

of .North Carolina, and maintains a principal place of business in

Purchase, New York.

ii. Upon information and belief, defendant Jack

Schwartz Shoes, Inc. d/b/a British Knights is a New York corpora-

tion with its principal place of business at 155 Avenue of the

Americas, New York, New York 10013.

12. Upon information and belief, at all times Stated

herein, defendants have transacted and have done business in this

district, in this state, and in interstate commerce, have con-

tracted to supply goods or services in New York, have committed

the acts complained of herein in New York or without New York, but

with reason to know that the consequences thereof would affect

persons in New York, and/or regularly do and solicit business in

New York and derive substantial revenue from goods used or con-

sumed or services rendered in New York.

THE FACTS

13. In th~ summer of 1987, Santrayll and Walker colla-

borated to compose an original musical composition in the nature

of what is commonly referred to as "rap~ music entitled ~In Full

Effect," with Santrayll composing the rap lyrics, and Walker

composing the accompanying music (hereinafter referred to as the

"Work")° The Work contains copyrightable subject matter°
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14. A significant and distinctive component of the Work

was the extended repetition of the phrase "Uh-Oh" in a unique

syncopated rhythmical manner (hereinafter referred to as the "Uh-

Oh Motif").

15. In 1988, the title to the Work was changed to "Uh-

Oh", and the Work itself was altered to make the Uh-Oh Motif the

connecting bridge or "chorus" between the various rap verses.

16. These alterations made the Uh-Oh Motif the promi-

nent commercial feature or what is commonly known as the "hook" of

the Work.

17. In July, 1989, the Legend plaintiffs assigned legal

title to the copyright in the Work to Colodne, retaining their

beneficial ownership of the copyright as exclusive recipients of

writer royalties from the commercial exploitation by Colodne of

the Work.

18. On May 7, 1990, the Legend plaintiffs duly regis-

tered a claim to copyright in the Work in the United States Copy-

right Office, as evidenced by Certificate of Registration No. PAU

1366577, a copy of which is annexed hereto as Exhibit i.

19. Plaintiffs have at all times complied with the

provisions of the Copyright Act applicable to the Work°

COUNT I

(Copyright Infringement Claims Against Defen-
dants Burrell, Bust It Publishing, Bust It
Productions and Capitol Records, Inco)

20° Plaintiffs repeat each and every allegation set

forth in paragraphs i through 19 of this complaint, as if fully

set forth herein°
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21. Upon information and belief, defendants Burrell,

Bust It Publishing, Bust It Productions and Capitol, with know-

ledge of the subsisting copyright in the Work, infringed the

copyright in the plaintiffs’ Work by licensing, publishing,

recording, manufacturing, promoting, advertising, distributing

and/or selling phonorecords, including LP albums, singles, compact

discs, audio and video cassettes and other configurations of

recordings, embodying the musical composition alternatively enti-

tled "Here Comes The Hammer" or "Uh Oh, Here Comes The Hammer," as

to which Burrell is credited as author (hereinafter referred to as

the "Infringing Work~).

22. The prominent commercial feature of the Infringing

Work is an extended repetition of the phrase "Uh-Oh," in a

rhythmical syncopated manner strikingly similar to the Uh-Oh Motif

as embodied in plaintiff’s Work.

23. Like in plaintiff’s Work, Burrell utilized plain-

tiff’s Uh-Oh Motif as the connecting bridge or chorus between the

various verses of rap lyrics embodied in the Infringing Work°

24. Like in plaintiff’s Work, the Uh-Oh Motif, as

utilized by Burrell, is the most prominent commercial feature of

the Infringing Work.

25. The Infringing Work was purportedly authored and

has been publicly performed on television and elsewhere by

Burrell.

26. Upon information and belief, the Infringing Work,

was published in print by Bust It Publishing, and licensed by Bust

It Publishing to Bust It Productions and/or Capitol Records, Inco
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for use in connection, among other things, with the manufacture

and sale of sound recordings and video cassettes.

27. Upon information and belief, the Infringing work

was fixed in the form of sound recordings and video cassettes, and

advertised, marketed, promoted and sold to the general public by

Bust It Productions and/or Capitol.

28. Upon information and belief, the Infringing Work

was initially distributed to the public, in a variety of configu-

rations, by Bust It Productions and/or Capitol on a sound record-

ing entitled "Please Hammer Don’t Hurt ’Em" released in or about

mid-February, 1990.

29. Prior thereto, representatives of plaintiffs had

distributed a substantial number of copies of audio and video

cassettes embodying the Legend plaintiffs’ recorded performance of

the Work to numerous musicians, persons and companies in the music

publishing and recording industries, including defendant Capitol,

Burrell’s then and current recording company and Manatt, Phelps &

Phillips, then and currently legal counsel to defendants Burrell

and Bust It Publishing.

30. The defendants’ use of plaintiffs’ Work has been

without the permission, license or consent of plaintiffs.

31. Upon information and belief, the infringing activi-

tiesof defendants Burrell, the Bust It Defendants and Capitol

have been carried out wilfully in disregard of plaintiffsr rights.

32. By virtue of the acts set forth above, said defen-

dants have authorized and/or engaged in the making and distribu-

tion of unlawful copies or phonorecords and/or derivative versions
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of plaintiffs’ Work, and/or have publicly performed the Infringing

Work in violation of plaintiffs’ exclusive rights under Section

106 of the copyright Act, 17 U.S.C. § 106.

33. Upon information and belief, by the acts complained

of said defendants have made and will make substantial profits to

which they are not, in equity or in good conscience, entitled.

34. Defendants’ conduct has damaged and will continue

to damage plaintiffs unless restrained by this Court.

35. Plaintiffs have no adequate remedy at law.

COUNT II

(Copyright Infringement Claims Against Defen-
dants Pepsico and British Knights)

36. Plaintiffs repeat and reallege each and every

allegation set forth in paragraphs 1 through 35 of the complaint,

as if fully set forth herein.

37. Upon information and belief, defendant Bust It

Publishing and/or Capitol licensed to defendants Pepsico and

British Knights the right to utilize the Infringing Work and/or

Burrell’s recorded performance of the Infringing Work, as embodied

on the sound recording distributed by Capitol entitled "Please

Hammer Don’t Hurt ’Em," in commercial advertisements to be aired

on television.

38. Thereafter, Pepsico and British Knights caused the

recorded performance of the Infringing Work to be broadcast on

television in connection with commercial advertisements.
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39. Said defendants’ acts in utilizing plaintiffs’ Work

have been without the permission, license or consent of plain-

tiffs.

40. By virtue of the acts set forth above, said defen-

dants have publicly performed or caused the public performance on

television of the Infringing Work in violation of plaintiffs’

exclusive rights under Section 106 of the Copyright Act, 17 U.S.C.

§ 106.

41. Upon information and belief, by the acts complained

of said defendants have made and will make substantial profits to

which they are not, in equity or in good conscience, entitled.

42. Defendants’ conduct has damaged and will continue

to damage plaintiffs unless restrained by this Court.

4B. Plaintiffs have no adequate remedy at law.

COUNT III

(False Designations, Representations and
Descriptions Against Burrell, Bust It Defen-
dants and Capitol)

44. Plaintiffs repeat and reallege the allegations set

forth in paragraphs 1 through 43, as if fully set forth herein.

45. Upon information and belief, subsequent to

January i, 1990, defendant Burrell, the Bust It Defendants and

defendant Capitol affixed, applied, annexed and used or authorized

the affixation, application or annexation in connection with

phonorecords and video cassettes distributed throughout the United

States and the advertising therefor, the descriptions and repre-

sentations that Burrell was the sole creator of the Infringing

Work.
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46. The representation that Burrell was the sole

creator of the Infringing Work is false and falsely misleading.

47. Defendants’ failure to attribute to the Legend

plaintiffs the authorship and copyright ownership of plaintiffs’

Work in connection with the Infringing Work "Here Comes The

Hammer" or "Uh-Oh, Here Comes The Hammer" and with the advertise-

ments therefor, has created a false designation of the source of

the composition and constitutes false designations of origin and

false descriptions and representations in violation of Section

43(a) of the Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C. § i125(a) and unfair competi-

tion under the common law.

48. Defendants’ conduct has damaged and will continue

to damage plaintiffs unless restrained by this Court, and has

irreparably damaged plaintiffs’ reputation by, among other things,

misleading members of the music publishing and recording indus~

tries and the general public into believing that the prominent

feature of plaintiffs’ Work, consisting of the Uh-Oh Motif, was

misappropriated by plaintiffs from the Infringing Work.

49. Plaintiffs have no adequate remedy at law.

COUNT IV

(Deceptive Acts and False Advertising Against
Burrell, Bust It Defendants and Capitol)

50. Plaintiffs repeat and reallege the allegations

contained in paragraphs 1 through 49 of the complaint, as if fully

set forth herein°

51. The foregoing acts of Burrell, the Bust It Defen-

dants and Capitol, as set forth in paragraphs 44 through 49
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hereof, constitute deceptive acts and practices and false adver-

tising under N.Y. Gen. Bus. Law §§ 349 and 350.

52. By reason of the foregoing, plaintiffs have been

and will continue to be damaged and irreparably harmed.

53. Plaintiffs have no adequate remedy at law.

WHEREFORE, plaintiffs demand judgment against the defen-

dants as follows:

A.    That defendants, their agents, officers, servants,

employees and attorneys, and all persons in active concert and

participation with them, be enjoined from, in any manner, either

directly or indirectly:

(a) manufacturing, vending, importing,

distributing, publicly performing, offering,

selling, promoting or advertising any copy of,

phonorecord of or derivative work based upon

the plaintiffs’ copyrighted musical composi-

tion entitled "Uh-Oh" (the subject of United

States Copyright Registration No.

PAU 1366577), or by causing, contributing to

and/or participating in such manufacturing,

vending, importing, distributing, public

performing, offering, selling or advertising°

Bo    That defendants Burrell, the Bust It Defendants and

Capitol, their agents, officers, servants, employees and

attorneys, and all persons in active concert and participation

with them, be enjoined from omitting to credit The Legend

plaintiffs, as their respective interests may appear, for their
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contribution to the authorship of the musical composition

alternatively entitled "Here Comes The Hammer" or "Uh-Oh, Here

Comes The Hammer", and the copyright ownership therein of Eric

Colodne d/b/a Bara Joy Music, on any copies, phonorecords, video-

cassettes or other configurations serving to reproduce such compo-

sition or any packaging or advertising for such copies, phono-

records, video cassettes or other configurations.

Co    That defendants, be required to deliver up for

destruction all infringing copies, recordings and phonorecords

embodying the plaintiffs’ Work, and all plates, molds, matrices

and other means of any kind for making infringing copies, record-

ings or phonorecords or other configurations of the plaintiffs’

Work.

Do    That defendants be required to account for all

gains, profits and advantages derived from their unlawful conduct

and pay to plaintiffs such damages as plaintiffs have sustained in

consequence of such unlawful conduct and that such damages, as

relates to plaintiffs’ claim under the Lanham Act, be trebled

under 15 U.S.C. § 1117 for violations of 15 U.S.C. § i125(a) o

E.    That defendants pay to plaintiffs the costs of this

action, including reasonable attorneys’ fees to be allowed to

plaintiffs by this court pursuant to 15 UoS.C. § 1117 and to

§§ 349(h) and 350-d(3) of the NoYo General Business Law.
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F.    That plaintiffs have such other and further relief

as the Court may find just and proper.

Dated: New York, New York
May ~ , 1991

COWAN, LIEBOWITZ & LATMAN, P.C.
Attorneys for Plaintiffs

By:
- Peter Herbert

605 Third Avenue
New York, New York 10158
(212) 503-6200

PH-2581
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